
 

City of La Vernia 

MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

102 E. Chihuahua St., La Vernia, Texas 78121 

July 20, 2023  

5:30 PM 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order and Declare a Quorum 

2. Invocation, Pledge of Allegiance and Pledge of Texas Flag 

3. Public Comments 

4. Consent Agenda 
(All consent agenda items are considered routine by City Council and will be enacted by 
one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilmember 
requests an item be removed and considered separately.) 

A. Meeting Minutes from the 05-18-23 MDD Meeting  

5. Discussion only  

A. Discuss results of the 2023 Red White and Boom follow-up survey  

6. Discussion/Action 

A. Discuss and consider action on a Facade Grant Application - 475 Bluebonnet Rd  

B. Discuss and consider action on making revisions to the MDD Facade Grant program 

C. Discuss and Consider acting on purchasing a bear statue for City Hal to kick off the 
"La Vernia Bears Program" 

D. Discuss and consider action on the purchase/ build of large frame for a photo op  

E. Discuss and consider action on Christmas décor plans for 2023  

7. Future Agenda Items 

8. Adjourn 

 

The Board of the La Vernia Municipal Development District reserves the right to adjourn into 
executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed 
above, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code 551.071 
(Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations 
about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberation about Security 
Devices), and 551.087 (Economic Development), and any other provision under Texas law that 
permits a governmental body to discuss a matter in a closed executive session. 

 

1



 
 

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the governing 
body of the above-named La Vernia Municipal Development Board is a true and correct copy of 
said Notice on the bulletin boards, of the City Hall of said City of La Vernia, Texas, a place 
convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times, and said Notice was posted 
on July 14 2023 at 5:00 pm and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 Hours 
proceeding the scheduled time of said meeting. 

 

 

_________________________________ 
Yvonne Griffin, Executive Director 

2



 

City of La Vernia 

MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

102 E. Chihuahua St., La Vernia, Texas 78121 

May 18, 2023  

5:30 PM 

MINUTES 

1. Call to Order and Declare a Quorum 

The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm  

Board members Recker, Gilbert, and Dodson were present, board members Farmer, and 
Hennette were not present  

2. Invocation, Pledge of Allegiance and Pledge of Texas Flag 

Board member Recker led the invocation and pledge  

3. Public Comments 

None  

4. Consent Agenda 
(All consent agenda items are considered routine by City Council and will be enacted by 
one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilmember 
requests an item be removed and considered separately.) 

A. Approve 04-20-23 MDD Meeting Minutes 

Board member Recker would like one edit made to the minutes- rather than stating 
"representative of McGarrell Orthodontics," to say, Carol Easton 

MOTION: Board member Gilbert made a motion to approve the minutes with the 
correction, seconded by board member Dodson, all in favor  

5. Discussion/Action 

A. R and Z Facade grant application   

MOTION: Board member Gilbert made a motion to approve the facade grant in the 
amount of $5,000, seconded by Board member Dodson, all in favor  

B. Edit the existing façade grant program  

The board would like to table this until the next meeting  

6. Discussion Only  

A. Discussion regarding FY 24 goals for the MDD  

The board is requesting more time to think about their goals  

B. Discuss plans for additional city Christmas decor  

The board would like staff to focus on San Antonio Road this year, commit to a 
theme, and do their best to decorate that street heavily  

C. Discuss La Vernia "Bear Program"  

3

Section 4, Item A.



 
 

The board is in favor of a program, would like city hall to purchase a bear to start off, 
and has asked staff to come back to the next meeting with several bear options for 
purchase approval along with possible program language and policy  

7. Future Agenda Items 

A. Presentation regarding 5 annual goals for the MDD to focus on next fiscal year  

MOTION: Board member Gilbert made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 6:02 pm, 
seconded by Board member Dodson, all in favor  

8. Adjourn 

 

The Board of the La Vernia Municipal Development District reserves the right to adjourn into 
executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed 
above, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code 551.071 
(Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations 
about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberation about Security 
Devices), and 551.087 (Economic Development), and any other provision under Texas law that 
permits a governmental body to discuss a matter in a closed executive session. 

 

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the governing 
body of the above-named La Vernia Municipal Development Board is a true and correct copy of 
said Notice on the bulletin boards, of the City Hall of said City of La Vernia, Texas, a place 
convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times, and said Notice was posted 
on Month DD, 20YY at H:MM PM and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 Hours 
proceeding the scheduled time of said meeting. 

 

 

_________________________________ 
Yvonne Griffin, Executive Director 

4

Section 4, Item A.



5

Section 6, Item A.



6

Section 6, Item A.



7

Section 6, Item A.



8

Section 6, Item A.



9

Section 6, Item A.



10

Section 6, Item A.



11

Section 6, Item A.



12

Section 6, Item A.



 
Page 1 

 Adopted April 11, 2013 
Amended July 18, 2013 

Amended October 22, 2014 
Amended January 12, 2017 

Amended April 9, 2023 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FAÇADE GRANT PROGRAM 
APPLICATION AND INSTRUCTIONS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13

Section 6, Item B.



 
Page 2 

 Adopted April 11, 2013 
Amended July 18, 2013 

Amended October 22, 2014 
Amended January 12, 2017 

Amended April 9, 2023 
 

 

FAÇADE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

La Vernia Municipal Development District Façade Grant Improvement Guidelines 

The LVMDD will consider, on a case-by-case basis, and may award by its sole discretion a grant 

to the owner of a commercial or industrial building within the city limits of La Vernia for façade 

improvements. 

1. Buildings designated as historical by the State of Texas or located in the Central Business 

will be given preference. Restoration of storefronts to their historic status will be given 

preference. 

2. We are looking for applicants who showcase their intent to increase curb appeal, thus, 

the improvements should be primarily focused on those that would be seen from the 

“curb.” 

3. Applicants are encouraged to add masonry, rock, stucco, or other materials with regard 

to exterior construction and architectural standards when appropriate. 

4. The building owner will submit drawings to the LVMDD. The drawings will illustrate the 

planned façade improvements. The drawings will be accompanied by cost estimates, 

color choices, and an estimated timeline for completion. The LVMDD Executive Director 

along with the building owner will present the request to the LVMDD Board.  

5. To receive a grant, the applicant must not begin work on the façade improvements until 

the grant is approved by the LVMDD. 

6. The applicant must submit photos of the completed work and a receipt of all costs 

incurred before the reimbursement money will be distributed. 

7. The applicant is expected to complete the work that was presented in the Façade grant 

application and agreed upon in the board meeting in order to be reimbursed.  

8. If signage on the building is part of the façade improvement, the cost of signage must not 

exceed the owner’s share of the project’s total cost. 

9. If landscape improvements to the front/ sides of the building are part of the façade 

improvement, the cost of said landscaping must not exceed the owner’s share of the 

project’s total cost. 

 

14

Section 6, Item B.



 
Page 3 

 Adopted April 11, 2013 
Amended July 18, 2013 

Amended October 22, 2014 
Amended January 12, 2017 

Amended April 9, 2023 
 

10. LVMDD will approve up to a maximum of $7,500 (Used to be $5,000) or 50% of the actual 

cost of the façade improvements, whichever is less. The LVMDD Executive Director shall 

certify proof of expenditures, the date the project is completed, and must recommend 

payment before funds are disbursed by the LVMDD. 

11. The owner of the property must be current on all property taxes. 

12. All contractors working on the façade improvements are required to be registered with 

the City of La Vernia.  

13. The following items are not eligible for reimbursement: roofing, landscaping, parking lot 

paving, fencing, or interior building improvements.  

14. The LVMDD may not expend more than $25,000 (Used to be $15,000) in this grant 

program from October 1st to September 30th each year. 

 

 

 

  

Name:         

Phone and email address          

Address and Legal Description of Property (applicant may attach maps and other illustrations)     

       

       

        

Describe the proposed alterations, changes, repair, and maintenance work in detail. Attach paint 

chips for changes that include repainting the structure. The LVMDD Board may require the 

submission of product samples and other technical information pertinent to the design. Review 

decisions. 

        

15

Section 6, Item B.



 
Page 4 

 Adopted April 11, 2013 
Amended July 18, 2013 

Amended October 22, 2014 
Amended January 12, 2017 

Amended April 9, 2023 
 

        

        

        

Desired Start Date   Completion Date     

Total Projected Cost    Projected Grant     

Attach a copy of an accurate graphic representation of the proposed work. This may include 

detailed plans, elevations, photos, and amateur or architectural drawings.  

        

Signature of Applicant   Date 

 

        

For LVMDD Office Use 

Application Received         

Meeting Date and presentation made:         

Decision of the LVMDD Board of Directors:         

Date applicant is notified:         

LA VERNIA MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR THE FAÇADE GRANT 

PROGRAM 

 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 

     § KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
COUNTY OF WILSON  § 

 

THIS IS AN AGREEMENT, made and entered into by and between the La Vernia 

Municipal Development District, a Municipal Development District created by and through 

the laws of the State of Texas, hereinafter called "LVMDD", acting by and through its duly 

authorized representative, and               , hereinafter 

16

Section 6, Item B.



 
Page 5 

 Adopted April 11, 2013 
Amended July 18, 2013 

Amended October 22, 2014 
Amended January 12, 2017 

Amended April 9, 2023 
 

called "GRANTEE," acting by and through its duly authorized representative. 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, the La Vernia Municipal Development District has created and 

approved a process whereby buildings located within the City of La Vernia Central 

Business District may apply for a façade improvement grant from the LVMDD; and 

II. 

WHEREAS, upon an affirmative vote of the majority of LVMDD Board, on 

_______________, the LVMDD determined that GRANTEE qualified for a grant in the 

amount of ______________ (the “funds”) for façade improvements as provided for in its 

application and that said funds shall be distributed to GRANTEE under the following terms 

and conditions: 

(a) For and in consideration of the distribution to GRANTEE by the 

LVMDD, the funds distributed shall be used by GRANTEE for the sole 

purpose of _______________________ (the “Project”).  All funds shall be 

for the following expenditures: 

            

            

(b) The remittance of the funds by LVMDD will be upon written request 

by GRANTEE.  The written request will indicate what the funds will be used 

for and the date the project is to commence.  LVMDD shall remit the funds 

within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the written request by GRANTEE.   

(c) The Project shall be completed by ________.  Should GRANTEE fail 

to complete the project by the specified completion date then, upon written 

17

Section 6, Item B.



 
Page 6 

 Adopted April 11, 2013 
Amended July 18, 2013 

Amended October 22, 2014 
Amended January 12, 2017 

Amended April 9, 2023 
 

demand by the LVMDD, GRANTEE shall, within 30 days of receiving the 

written demand, repay all funds received and shall remit 10% interest per 

annum on all funds received from the time GRANTEE received the funds 

from the LVMDD. 

(d) Upon completion of the Project, GRANTEE shall submit a final 

financial accounting (the “report”) to the LVMDD showing a line item 

accounting of all expenditures made during the Project which shall be 

accompanied by the check register of all related expenditures.  Invoices, 

receipts, or other proofs of expenditures shall be presented with the report. 

(e) Any funds GRANTEE receives that remain after the completion of 

the Project are to be returned to the LVMDD within 30 days of completion 

of the Project.  If it is determined that GRANTEE has used the funds for any 

purpose other than those identified in paragraph II(a) of this contract or has 

breached this contract in any fashion, GRANTEE shall repay all improper 

expenditures and shall remit 10% interest per annum on all improper 

expenditures from the time GRANTEE received the funds from the LVMDD. 

(f) All funds received from LVMDD shall be accounted for in a separate 

bank account and shall not be co-mingled with other cash funds. 

(g) GRANTEE shall at all times comply with the ordinances of the City 

of La Vernia and the laws of the State of Texas. 

III. 

In the performance of this contract, GRANTEE shall not discriminate against 

any employee or applicant for employment or with any customer with respect to 

his hire, tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges because of his race, color, religion, 

national origin, sex, disability, or ancestry.  A proven breach of this covenant may 

18

Section 6, Item B.



 
Page 7 

 Adopted April 11, 2013 
Amended July 18, 2013 

Amended October 22, 2014 
Amended January 12, 2017 

Amended April 9, 2023 
 

be regarded as a material breach of the contract causing its termination. 

IV. 

It is understood and agreed that in the event any provision of this contract is 

inconsistent with the requirements of law, the requirements of law will control and 

the parties shall revert to their respective positions which would otherwise be 

enjoyed or occupied by the respective parties for the terms of this contract. 

V. 

The foregoing instrument in writing between the parties herein, constitutes the entire 

agreement between the parties, relative to the funds made the basis hereof, and any other written 

or oral agreement with the LVMDD being expressly waived by GRANTEE. 

19

Section 6, Item B.



 
Page 8 

 Adopted April 11, 2013 
Amended July 18, 2013 

Amended October 22, 2014 
Amended January 12, 2017 

Amended April 9, 2023 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto execute this agreement in duplicate 

originals as of the date set forth above on this ____ day of ________________ 2020. 

LA VERNIA MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT, TEXAS 

 

 

 

 

BY: __________________________________ 

        
 

 

[Grantee] 

 

 

 

 

BY: __________________________________ 

        

 

 

20

Section 6, Item B.



21

Section 6, Item B.



22

Section 6, Item B.



23

Section 6, Item B.



24

Section 6, Item B.



25

Section 6, Item B.



26

Section 6, Item B.



27

Section 6, Item B.



28

Section 6, Item B.



 $1,850.00 
Free shipping 

6ft Tall Welcome / Cabin Bear 

CedarValleyCarvings 
5 out of 5 stars     

Custom Made 6ft Tall Welcome 

Bear for your Cabin or Home. 

 

VERY HEAVY. 200 lbs + 

 

Price Adjusted for Shipping costs. 

So, Shipping is included in the 

price for all 50 states. 

 

Carved from Yellow Pine, or 

Cedar. 

  

29

Section 6, Item C.

https://www.etsy.com/shop/CedarValleyCarvings?ref=shop-header-name&listing_id=1296373428
https://www.etsy.com/listing/1296373428/6ft-tall-welcome-cabin-bear?click_key=78a9fdb8c6dc4676a4dffb198f2e9a41bb7d326e%3A1296373428&click_sum=c351eddd&ref=shop_home_recs_2&frs=1#reviews


$900.00 
Free shipping 

5ft Tall Black Bear Carving 

CedarValleyCarvings 
5 out of 5 stars     

Custom Made 5ft Tall Welcome 

Bear for your Cabin or Home. 

 

VERY HEAVY. 100lbs + 

 

Price Adjusted for Shipping costs. 

So, Shipping is included in the 

price for all 50 states. 

 

Carved from Cedar. 

 

lifetime warranty 

  

30

Section 6, Item C.

https://www.etsy.com/shop/CedarValleyCarvings?ref=shop-header-name&listing_id=1397382083
https://www.etsy.com/listing/1397382083/5ft-tall-black-bear-carving?click_key=d5558dc734200b22793a4dc5b181f09bb3ce4da3%3A1397382083&click_sum=392d5928&ref=shop_home_recs_3&frs=1&crt=1#reviews


 

31

Section 6, Item C.



32

Section 6, Item C.



33

Section 6, Item C.



34

Section 6, Item C.



35

Section 6, Item C.



36

Section 6, Item C.



37

Section 6, Item C.



38

Section 6, Item C.



39

Section 6, Item C.



40

Section 6, Item C.



41

Section 6, Item C.



42

Section 6, Item C.



43

Section 6, Item C.



44

Section 6, Item C.



45

Section 6, Item C.



 

46

Section 6, Item C.



 

47

Section 6, Item D.



48

Section 6, Item E.



price is $985 each 

Each panel is 4’x11.5’….they are made so that when you put two of them together it makes about 25’ 

with a little space between them 

 

 

 

49

Section 6, Item E.


	Top
	Section 4, Item A.	Meeting Minutes from the 05-18-23 MDD Meeting
	5-18-23 MDD meeting minutes

	Section 6, Item A.	Discuss and consider action on a Façade Grant Application - 475 Bluebonnet Rd
	Jeanine Scheonart

	Section 6, Item B.	Discuss and consider action on making revisions to the MDD Facade Grant program
	2023 draft facade grant amendment
	20230622_FACADE GRANT PROGRAM

	Section 6, Item C.	Discuss and Consider action on purchasing a bear statue for City Hal to kick off the " La Vernia Bears Program"
	Etsy Bears
	20230714_9H01B45
	20230714_$31.90
	pOLAR BEAR

	Section 6, Item D.	Discuss and consider action on the purchase/ build of large frame for a photo op
	large frame

	Section 6, Item E.	Discuss and consider action on Christmas décor plans for 2023
	20230705_RE_ Question_ City of La Vernia
	Christmas decor ideas

	Bottom

